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Abstract

This annual report of the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission's Office of Enforcement describes
enforcement activities occurring during fiscal year 1998 (October 1, 1997 through
September 30, 1998). The report addresses significant policy changes, highlights significant
enforcement actions, and includes summaries of cases involving exercise of discretion,
discrimination and actions involving individuals. It also addresses implementation, staff guidance,
and initiatives for the agency's enforcement program. A variety of statistical tables and figures are
also’included.
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Overview of NRC Enforcement Program

The Commission has developed an enforcement program and Enforcement Policy to support the NRC's
overall safety mission in protecting the public and the environment. Consistent with that purpose,
enforcement action should be used as a deterrent to emphasize the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements, and to encourage prompt identification and prompt, comprehensive correction of violations.

Violations are identified through inspections and investigations. All violations (except minor violations) are
subject to civil enforcement action and may also be subject to criminal prosecution. After an apparent
violation is identified, it is assessed in accordance with the Commission's Enforcement Policy. The Policy
is published as NUREG-1600, Rev. 1, "General Statement of Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement
Actions," to provide widespread dissemination. Because it is a policy statement and not a regulation, the
Commission may deviate from this statement of policy and procedure as appropriate under the circumstances
of a particular case. .

There are three primary enforcement sanctions available: Notices of Violation, civil penalties, and orders.
A Notice of Violation (NOV) identifies a requirement and how it was violated, and formalizes a violation
pursuant to 10 CFR 2.201. A civil penalty is a monetary fine issued under authority of Section 234 of the
Atomic Energy Act (AEA) or Section 206 of the Energy Reorganization Act (ERA). Section 234 of the AEA
provides for penalties of up to $100,000 per violation per day; but that amount has been adjusted by the Debt
Collection Improvement Act of 1996 to be $110,000. The Commission's order issuing authority under
Section 161 of the AEA is broad and extends to any area of licensed activity that affects the public health and
safety. Orders modify, suspend, or revoke licenses or require specific actions by licensees or persons. The
Commission's regulations provide for issuing orders to persons who are not themselves licensed. NOVs and
civil penalties are issued based on violations. Orders may be issued for violations, or in the absence of a
violation, because of a public health or safety issue.

The first step in the enforcement process is assessing the severity of the violation. Severity Levels range from
Severity Level 1, for the most significant violations, to Severity Level 1V for those of more than minor
concern. Minor violations are not subject to formal enforcement action. Severity levels may be increased
for cases involving a group of violations with the same root cause, repetitive violations, or willful violations.

A predecisional enforcement conference may be conducted with a licensee before making an enforcement
decision if escalated enforcement action (i.e., Severity Level 1, 11, or I1I violations, civil penalties or orders)
appears to be warranted, and if the NRC concludes that it is necessary or the licensee requests it. Ifthe NRC
concludes that a conference is not necessary, it may provide a licensee with an opportunity to respond to the
apparent violations before making an enforcement decision or issue the enforcement action if a civil penalty
is not warranted. The purpose of the conference is to obtain information that will assist the NRC in
determining the appropriate enforcement action, such as: (1) a common understanding of facts, root causes
and missed opportunities associated with the apparent violations, (2) a common understanding of corrective
action taken or planned, and (3) a common understanding of the significance of issues and the need for
lasting comprehensive corrective action. The decision to hold a conference does not mean that the agency
has determined that a violation has occurred or that enforcement action will be taken. In accordance with
the Enforcement Policy, conferences are normally open to public observation.

Civil penalties are considered for Severity Level III violations and are normally assessed for Severity Level |
and Il violations and knowing and conscious violations of the reporting requirements of Section 206 of the
Energy Reorganization Act.

- vii -
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The NRC imposes different levels of civil penalties based on a combination of the type of licensed activity,
the type of licensee, the severity level of the violation, and (1) whether the licensee has had any previous
escalated enforcement action (regardless of the activity area) during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections,
-whichever is longer; (2) whether the licensee should be given credit for actions related to identification;
(3) whether the licensee's corrective actions are prompt and comprehensive; and (4) whether, in view of all
the circumstances, the matter in question requires the exercise of discretion. Although each of these
decisional points may have several associated considerations for any given case, the outcome of the
assessment process for each violation or problem, absent the exercise of discretion, is limited to one of the
following three results: no civil penalty, a base civil penalty, or twice the base civil penalty.

If a civil penalty is to be proposed, a written Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty
is issued and the licensee has 30 days to respond in writing, by either paying the penalty or contesting it. The
NRC considers the response, and if the penalty is contested, may either mitigate the penalty or impose it by
order. Thereafter, the licensee may pay the civil penalty or request a hearing.

In addition to civil penalties, orders may be used to modify, suspend, or revoke licenses. Orders may require
additional corrective actions, such as removing specified individuals from licensed activities or requiring
additional controls or outside audits. Persons adversely affected by orders that modify, suspend, or revoke
a license, or that take other action may request a hearing.

The NRC issues a press release with a proposed civil penalty or order. All orders are published in the
Federal Register.

- viii -
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Office of Enforcement

The Office of Enforcement (OE) exercises oversight of NRC enforcement programs, provides programmatic
and implementation direction to regional and headquarters offices conducting or involved in enforcement
activities, and ensures that regional enforcement programs are adequately carried out.

The Office of Enforcement reports to the Executive Director for Operations (EDO) through the Deputy
Executive Director for Regulatory Effectiveness.

The Office of Enforcement has 16 full-time employees (FTEs) assigned for headquarters activities and
12 FTEs assigned for regional activities (although these FTEs report to the Regional Administrators).

-ix -
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1. Enforcement Policy Changes

This section describes the 3 revisions to the Enforcement Policy that were made during fiscal year 1998.

A. October 8, 1997: Clarification on Release of OI Repo}ts Associated With
Conferences Involving Discrimination and Role of the Complainant (62 FR 52577)

- On October 8, 1997, the Commission published a revision to the Enforcement Policy that clarified the
procedures associated with predecisional enforcement conferences based on reports of the NRC Office
of Investigations (OI) associated with discrimination. On March 24, 1997, the Commission published
changes to the Enforcement Policy concerning predecisional conferences based on discrimination.
Consistent with the Statement of Consideration for those changes, Section V of the Policy was modified
to reflect that the OI report may be made public. Also, additional language was added to clarify that the
purpose of the complainant's participation in a conference is to provide information to the NRC to assist
the staff in its deliberations.

B. January 13, 1997: Deliberate Misconduct Rule (63 FR 1982)

On January 13, 1997, the Commission published revisions to the Enforcement Policy to conform to
modifications to the Deliberate Misconduct Rule. These modifications extend that Rule to applicants for
NRC licenses, applicants for, and holders of], certificates of compliance, early site permits, standard
design certifications, or combined licenses issued under part 52, applicants for or holders of certificates
of registration, quality assurance approvals, and the employees, contractors, subcontractors, and
consultants of those persons. By a separate action published in this issue of the Federal Register, the
Commission also issued a final rule amending 10 CFR parts 30, 32, 40, 50, 52, 60, 61, 70, 71, 72, 110,
and 150.

C. May 13, 1998: Multiple Revisions Based on 2-Year Review (63 FR 26630)

On May 13, 1998, the Commission published a complete revision of the agency's Enforcement Policy
(NUREG-1600, "General Statement of Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions") based on
(1) a 2-year review of the revised Enforcement Policy, that was effective June 30, 1995, and (2) a
consolidation of changes to the Enforcement Policy since June 30, 1995.

2. Implementation, Staff Guidance, & Initiatives

This section addresses implementation initiatives and changes during fiscal year 1998, including completion
of a 2-year review of the Enforcement Policy, staff guidance and training, and availability of enforcement
information on the Internet.

A. Two-Year Review of the Enforcement Policy

On June 30, 1995, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) issued a complete revision of the
Enforcement Policy (60 FR 34381). In approving the 1995 revision to the Enforcement Policy, the
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Commission directed the staff to perform a review of its implementation of the Policy after
approximately 2 years of experience and to consider public comments.

The staff completed this review in November of 1997, and the review was subsequently published as
NUREG-1622 in April 1998. The report included 20 recommendatlons ranging from program
implementation issues to Enforcement Policy revisions.

B. Revision of NRC Enforcement Manual

The NRC Enforcement Manual (Manual), is designed to assist the NRC staff in implementing the
Commission’s enforcement program. The Office of Enforcement published a full revision of the Manual
as NUREG/BR-0195, Rev. 2 in August 1998. The changes reflected in the revision were based on
revisions to the Enforcement Policy and previous Enforcement Guidance Memoranda.

C. Enforcement Guidance Memoranda (EGMs)

The normal method for the Director, OE, to issue additional enforcement guidance is through the
issuance of an EGM. EGMSs may add guidance for Enforcement Policy application, revise existing
guidance on processing enforcement actions, or transmit temporary guidance.

Thirteen EGMs were issued in fiscal year 1998.

¢ EGM 97-016 - Clarification of Guidelines for Violations Involving Deliberate Misuse of Licensed
Material - Reissued November 4, 1997.

4 EGM 97-017 - Enforcement Discretion Pertaining to Violations of 10 CFR 70.24, Criticality
Accident Requiremqnts at Commercial Nuclear Power Plants - Issued October 10, 1997.

4 EGM 97-018 - Coordination of Disputed Enforcement Actions with the Office of Enforcement -
Issued October 10, 1997.

4+ EGM 97-019 - Revision of Potential 10 CFR 50.59 Violations - Issued October 24, 1997.

4+ EGM 97-020 - Modification to Standard Forms for Notice of Violation and Modification of EGM
97-018 - Issued December 17, 1997.

4+ EGM 98-001(T) - Loss or Improper Disposal of sources (Enforcement Manual, Section 8.6.2) -
Issued February 5, 1998.

4 EGM 98-002 - Disposition of Violations of Appendix R, Sections I11.G and I11.L regarding Circuit
Failures - Issued March 2, 1998.

¢ EGM 98-003 - Guidance on the Release of Ol Synopses in Discrimination Cases - Issued
March 25, 1998.

¢ EGM 98-004 - Categorizing the Severity Level of Violations Involving Security and Control of
Licensed Material - Issued April 24, 1998.
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4 EGM 98-005 - Guidance for Dispositioning Violations of the Timeliness in Decommissioning of
Material Facilities Rule - Issued July 9, 1998.

4 EGM 98-006 - Interim Guidance for Severity Level IV Violations - Issued July 27, 1998.

¢+ EGM 98-007 - Extension of Exercise of Discretion for FSAR Discrepancies Identified While the
Licensee has a Defined Program for Identifying Such Discrepancies - Issued September 15, 1998.

4 EGM 98-008 - Interim Guidance for Severity Level 1V Violations - Materials Licensees - Issued
September 15, 1998.

D. Enforcement Training

The Office of Enforcement routinely provides training on the enforcement program through several NRC
training courses. During fiscal year 1998, OE provided comprehensive enforcement training in the
Fundamentals of Inspection Course (FOIC) in June 1998 and the “NRC: What It Is and What It Does,”
in August 1998,

The Office of Enforcement also provided extensive training on the treatment of Severity Level IV
violations (as addressed in EGM 98-006) by way of video conferencing and regional counterpart
meetings.

The regions also provided training on the enforcement program in the regional offices.

E. Enforcement Information on the Internet

To ensure timely and widespread public dissemination of enforcement information, OE continues to
electronically publish enforcement information on the Internet. A home page for the enforcement
program was established on the World Wide Web in May 1996. The home page includes a general
description of the enforcement program and its mission, enforcement contacts, the Enforcement Policy
(NUREG-1600, Rev. 1),the NRC Enforcement Manual (NUREG/BR-0195, Rev. 2), the policy statement
for "Nuclear Employees Raising Safety Concerns Without Fear of Retaliation," a link to Department of
Labor (DOL) adjudicatory decisions, and upcoming predecisional enforcement conferences. It also
includes a copies of significant enforcement actions that the agency has issued arranged by reactor,
materials, and individual actions. The Internet address for OE's home page is: www.nrc.gov/OE/.

3. Escalated Enforcement and Administrative Items

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued 200 individual escalated enforcement items. Escalated
enforcement items include individual civil penalties (76), orders (other than orders imposing civil penalties)
(16), and Notices of Violation for Severity Level I, II, or I1I violations (108). Note that an enforcement case
or enforcement action issued to a licensee may include more than one individual enforcement item. Table 1
includes a numerical breakdown of escalated enforcement items and Demands for Information issued by each
regional office.

Table 2 includes a statistical summary of escalated enforcement items based on the type of licensee, vendor,
or individual.
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Timeliness of Enforcement Actions

The average time to issue escalated enforcement actions (excluding orders) is a performance measure used
by the NRC. For actions that do not involve an investigation, the measurement period begins on the date of
the inspection exit meeting. For actions that involve an investigation, but no referral to the Department of
Justice (DOJ), the measurement period begins on the date of issuance of the report of investigation. For
actions that involve an investigation and referral to DOJ, the measurement period begins on the date DOJ
informs the NRC that the NRC may proceed with civil action. For actions that involve discrimination and
Department of Labor (DOL) proceedings, the measurement period begins when there is an appropriate
decision in the DOL process or sufficient evidence from the NRC's processes to support actions.

On the basis of the defined measurement period, escalated enforcement actions (excluding orders) are to be
issued within an average of no more than 90 days. During fiscal year 1998 this standard was met, with
enforcement actions issued in an average time of 80.6 days. During fiscal year 1997, enforcement actions
were issued in an average time of 88.5 days. During fiscal year 1996, enforcement actions were issued in
an average time of 84.5 days.

Civil Penalty Assessment Process: Determining Whether a Civil Penalty Should Be Proposed

If the NRC concludes that a violation should be categorized at Severity Level 1, II, or III, the staff then
considers whether (for a licensed facility), a civil penalty should be proposed for the violation. For the
majority of cases, in accordance with Section VI.B.2 of the Enforcement Policy, the civil penalty assessment
process considers: (1) whether the licensee has had any previous escalated enforcement action (regardless
of the activity area) during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, whichever is longer; (2) whether the licensee
should be given credit for actions related to identification; (3) whether the licensee's corrective actions are
prompt and comprehensive; and (4) whether, in view of all the circumstances, the matter in question requires
the exercise of discretion. Depending on the outcome of the civil penalty process, the staff will conclude
whether an escalated Notice of Violation should be issued with or without a civil penalty. Figure 1 of this
report includes a graphic representation of the civil penalty process and includes a statistical breakdown of
the 154 individual enforcement issues or enforcement items assessed under the process. It should be noted
that an enforcement case or enforcement action issued to a licensee may include more than one individual
enforcement item. It should also be noted that this number does not directly correlate to the 184 escalated
Notices of Violation issued with and without civil penalties in Table 1 because the civil penalty assessment
process only applies to licensees and because not all cases were assessed under the civil penalty assessment
process.

Total Escalated NOVs Issued NOV Issued Enforcement
NOVs w/o penalty to Individuals to a Vendor Discretion
and civil penalties

184 - 17 - 1 - 12 = 154

Specifically, 17 Notices of Violation were issued to individuals, 1 Notice of Violation was issued to a vendor,
and 12 enforcement issues were based solely on an exercise of discretion in accordance with Section VIL.A
of the Enforcement Policy (Escalation of Enforcement Sanctions) or Section VIL.B.6 of the Enforcement
Policy (Violations Involving Special Circumstances). Figure 2 of this report includes a graphic representation
of the civil penalty process and includes a statistical breakdown of the 68 individual reactor enforcement
issues or enforcement items assessed under the process. Figure 3 includes the statistical breakdown of the
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86 individual materials enforcement items. Figures 4 through 15 include the statistical breakdown of
enforcement issues based on the 12 possible paths of the civil penalty assessment process flowchart.

A. Escalated Notices of Violation (Without Civil Penalties)

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued 108 escalated Notices of Violation (without civil penalties).
(This number reflects the number of individual enforcement issues versus the number of enforcement
cases issued during the year.) Eighteen of these items were issued to individuals and other non-licensed
persons. See Section S for more information on enforcement items issued to individuals and other non-
licensed persons. Appendix A includes a short summary description of each of the enforcement issues
as well as a summary of the civil penalty assessment process, i.e., why a civil penalty was not proposed.

B. Civil Penalty Actions

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued 76 individual civil penalty issues. Appendix B includes a
short summary description of each of these items, as well as a summary of the civil penalty assessment
process, i.e., why a civil penalty was proposed. Table 3 includes statistical information on civil penalties
and Table 4 includes a statistical analysis of the range of civil penalties for both reactor and materials
licensees. As stated before, an enforcement action may include more than one individual civil penalty
issue.

During fiscal year 1998, two enforcement actions included civil penalties in excess of $300,000. These
actions included:

1. $2,100,000 - Northeast Utilities: Millstone, (EAs 96-034, 96-067, 96-086, 96-106)
2. $330,000 - Commonwealth Edison Company: Quad Cities (EA 97-591)

The $2,100,000 civil penalty issued to Northeast Utilities was the largest civil penalty proposed since the
$1,250,000 civil penalty issued to Peach Bottom in 1988 for operators being inattentive to duties in the
control room.

C. Orders

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued 16 orders. Seven of these orders were issued to licensees
while nine of the orders were issued to individuals. (See Section 5 for more information on enforcement
actions issued to individuals and other non-licensed persons.) Appendix C includes a short summary
description of each of the eight orders issued to licensees. In addition, six civil penalty imposition orders
were issued.

D. Demands for Information

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued three formal Demands for Information to licensees.
Appendix D includes a short summary description of each of these actions. (See Section 5 for more
information on Demands for Information issued to individuals.)
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E. Summary of Significant Actions

The NRC considers violations categorized at Severity Level I and II to be very significant. The agency
also considers enforcement actions consisting of multiple Severity Level III violations to be very
significant. During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued two enforcement cases including two individual
Severity Level I issues. The agency issued six enforcement cases including 10 individual Severity
Level 1l issues. The agency issued 10 multi-action enforcement cases including 25 individual Severity
Level Il issues. These significant cases are listed below. Case summaries are included in the referenced
appendix.

SEVERITY LEVEL I CASES

Construction Products Research, Inc., Fairfield, CT EA 97471
Five Star Products, Inc
Supplement VII

A Notice of Violation for a Severity Level I violation was issued on January 16, 1998, based on
discrimination against an individual for raising safety concerns. (Appendix A.)

Mallinckrodt Medical Incorporated EA 97-342 & 97-355
Supplement IV

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $55,000 was issued
on December 17, 1997, based in part on a Severity Level I problem involving failure to limit the annual
shallow-dose equivalent of an occupational worker to 50 rems and failure to make or cause to be made
surveys to assure compliance with 10 CFR Part 20. (Appendix B.)

SEVERITY LEVEL IT CASES

Breitling USA Watch Co., EA 98-163
Supplement VI

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $26,400 was issued
on July 10, 1998, for two Severity Level Il problems that involved the possession and use, as well as
distribution, of NRC licensed material without possessing NRC licenses authorizing these activities.
(Appendix B.) '

Colon-Vaquar, Jose, M.D., Manati, PR EA 98-184
Supplement VI

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty in the amount of $4,400 was issued on
May 22, 1998, for a Severity Level Il problem that involved two misadministrations, a Severity Level 111
problem, and a Severity Level 11I violation. (Appendix B.)
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Commonwealth Edison Co., Quad Cities EA 98-231
Supplement I :

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty in the amount of $88,000 was issued on
September 11, 1998, for a Severity Level Il problem that involved 16 violations that represented
inadequacies in the licensee’s capability to shutdown the facility following a postulated design basis fire.
(Appendix B.)

Department of the Army, Tank- Automotive and Armaments Command EA 97-350
Supplement IV & VI

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $16,000 was issued
on November 12, 1997, for two Severity Level II problems including failures to: (1) properly store
licensed material, conduct annual inspections and inventories, provide training, conduct tests by
persons authorized to do so, conduct surveys, and perform maintenance in accordance with procedures;
and (2) provide notifications to the NRC. (Appendix B.)

Duke Power Company, Oconee EA 98-268
Supplement 1

A Notice of Violation for a Severity Level II violation was issued on August 5, 1998. The action was
based on: (1) the failure to implement the requirements of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion III, to
incorporate design basis requirements into drawings and procedures; and, (2) the failure to maintain
Technical Specification (TS) equipment in an operable condition. (Appendix A.)

Northeast Nuclear Energy, Millstone, Units 1,2 &3 EA 96-034, 96-067, 96-086, & 96-106
Supplement I

ANotice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $2,100,000 was issued
on December 10, 1997, for three Severity Level II and one Severity Level Il problems. (Appendix B.)

MULTIPLE SEVERITY LEVEL III CASES

Commonwealth Edison Company, Quad Cities, Units 1&2 EA 97-591
Supplement 1

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $330,000 was issued
on March 12, 1998. This action is based on two Severity Level III problems. (Appendix B.)

Consolidated Edison Company, Indian Point, Unit 2 EA 97-367
Supplement 1

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $110,000 was issued
on October 7, 1997. The action was based on a Severity Level III problem and a Severity Level 111
violation. (Appendix B.)
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Consolidated Edison Company, Indian Point, Unit 2 EA 97-576, 98-056, & 98-192
Supplement 1

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $110,000 was issued
on July 6, 1998. The action was based on a Seventy Level III problem and two Severity Level 111
violations. (Appendix A and B.)

Frontier Production Logging EA 97-327
Supplement VI

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty in the amount of $2,750 was issued on
November 7, 1997. The action was based on a Severity Level 11 violation and a Severity Level 111
problem.

GPU Nuclear Incorporated, Oyster Creek Nuclear Generating Station EA 97-421
Supplement 1

A Notice of Violation was issued on November 17, 1997, for three Severity Level 1l violations.
(Appendix A.)

GPU Nuclear Corporation, Three Mile Island, Unit 1 EA 97-070,97-117,97-127
Supplement 1 & 97-256

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $210,000 was issued
on October 8, 1997, for four Severity Level III problems and a Severity Level 1II violation.
(Appendix B.)

Haines & Kibblehouse, Inc., Skippack, PA EA 97-556
Supplements 1V & VI

A Notice of Violation for two Severity Level III problems. (Appendix A.)

Ohio State University EA 97-258
Supplement VI, V &VI

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties in the amount of $13,000 was issued
on October 23, 1997, for a Severity Level 11 problem and two Severity Level III problems.
(Appendix B.)

Public Service Electric and Gas Company, Hope Creek EAs 97-144 & 97-563
Supplement I

A Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty in the amount of $55,000 for a Severity
Level 111 violation and a Severity Level 11l problem was issued on March 20, 1998.




OE Annual Report

York Hospital, York, PA EA 97-427
Supplement VII

A Notice of Violation for a Severity Level III problem and a Severity Level I1I violation was issued on
March 4, 1998.

F. Enforcement Trends

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued 200 escalated enforcement actions (108 escalated NOVs,
76 civil penalties, and 16 orders) versus 264 for fiscal year 1997, 191 for fiscal year 1996 and 159 for
fiscal year 1995. This represents an approximate 24% reduction from fiscal year 1997 and a 5% increase
over fiscal year 1996 and 20% increase over fiscal year 1995.

Statistical cbmparisons between fiscal years 1997, 1996, and 1995 are included in each of the tables of
this report. However, it should be noted that direct correlations between fiscal year 1995 and the other
fiscal years is difficult because of the major policy change that occurred in June of 1995.

Table 5 of this report includes a 2-year history of individual escalated enforcement items by specific
reactor sites. Based on a 2-year period, reactor sites are ranked in order of the largest civil penalty
amounts assessed and the largest total number of combined civil penalty items and escalated Notices of
Violations without civil penalties issued. A 2-year period is used for this ranking because it represents
a sufficient time-frame to provide perspectives on performance and enforcement activity. Two years is
also the time period used in the Enforcement Policy for reviewing past performance. This table also
provides enforcement data for the last 12 months at each of the sites listed. Unlike other tables that
include data based on proposed actions, the data in this table accounts for any withdrawals or
modifications from the original proposed action.

During the 2-year period between fiscal years 1997 and 1998, the agency issued a total of 191 individual
civil penalties and individual Severity I, I, and III Notices of Violation without civil penalties to 57 (or
80%) of the reactor sites. Fourteen sites did not receive any escalated enforcement action during this
period. Of the 57 sites, 16 sites received 1 escalated enforcement item (16 issues), 11 sites received
2 individual escalated enforcement items (22 issues), and 30 sites received more than 2 individual
escalated enforcement items (153 issues). Thus, 30 sites (or 42%) accounted for 153 (or 80%) of the
escalated actions issued.

Of the 191 individual escalated items, 117 were civil penalties issued to 47 (or 66%) of the 71 reactor
sites. Twenty-four (or 34%) of the sites did not receive a civil penalty.

Of the 47 sites that did receive a penalty, 19 sites had 1 civil penalty item (19 civil penalties) 9 sites had
2 individual civil penalty items each (18 civil penalties), and 18 sites had more than 2 individual civil
penalty items (80 civil penalties) for a total of 117 individual civil penalties. Thus, 18 sites (or 25%)
accounted for 80 (or 68%) of the civil penalties issued.

A summary of civil penalty trends for reactor licensees over the last four fiscal years is included on the
next page.




OE Annual Report

Civil Penalty Trends for Reactor Licensees
Fiscal Year 1998

42 licensees did not receive a civil penalty (CP)

29 licensees received civil penalties (46 individual CPs)

5 licensees had more than 2 civil penalties (20 individual CPs) == 43% of CPs
2 licensees had 2 CPs (4 individual CPs) s 9% of CPs

22 licensees had 1 CP (22 individual CPs) = 48% of CPs

vy v v v v

Fiscal Year 1997

» 36 licensees did not receive a civil penalty (CP)

» 35 licensees received civil penalties (70 individual CPs)

» 9 licensees had more than 2 civil penalties (35 individual CPs) s 50% of CPs
» 9 licensees had 2 CPs (18 individual CPs) s 26% of CPs

» 17 licensees had 1 CP (17 individual CPs) == 24% of CPs

Fiscal Year 1996

» 42 licensees did not receive a civil penalty (CP)

» 29 licensees received civil penalties (50 individual CPs)

» 5 licensees had more than 2 civil penalties (21 individual CPs) s 42% of CPs
» 5 licensees had 2 CPs (10 individual CPs) ¥ 20% of CPs

» 19 licensees had 1 CP (19 individual CPs) 2 38% of CPs

Fiscal Year 1995

56 licensees did not receive a civil penalty (CP)

15 licensees received civil penalties (25 individual CPs)

4 licensees had more than 2 civil penalties (14 individual CPs) =% 56% of CPs
0 licensees had 2 CPs

11 licensees had 1 CP (11 individual CPs) 5% 44% of CPs

vyvy vy vy

4. Cases Involving Exercise of Discretion

Section VII of the Enforcement Policy addresses those cases where, notwithstanding the normal guidance
contained in the Policy, the NRC may choose to exercise discretion and either escalate or mitigate
enforcement sanctions within the Commission's statutory authority to ensure that the resulting enforcement
action appropriately reflects the level of NRC concern regarding the violation at issue and conveys the
appropriate message to the licensee. During fiscal year 1998, 69 escalated cases involved an exercise of
discretion. Sixty of the cases were for reactor licensees and nine cases were for materials licensees.

Section VIL.A of the Enforcement Policy provides that the NRC may increase a sanction up to its full
enforcement authority where the action is warranted without applying the normal civil penalty assessment
process (Section VI.B.2). It also provides for either increasing the amounts of civil penalties or proposing
civil penalties where the normal process would result in no civil penalty. During fiscal year 1998, 11 cases

-10 -
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involved this exercise of discretion. Six cases were for reactor licensees and five cases were for materials
licensees.

Section VII.B.1 provides that NOVs need not be issued for Severity Level IV violations that meet specific
criteria. Cases that are subject to this enforcement discretion are not described in this report.

Section VII.B.2 provides that civil penalties or NOVs need not be issued for violations identified during
extended shutdowns or work stoppages if they are licensee-identified, based upon activities prior to the events
leading to the shutdown, non-willful, and not categorized at Severity Level I. This exercise of discretion
provides that the licensee’s decision to restart the plant requires NRC concurrence. During fiscal year 1998,
19 cases involved this exercise of discretion. Eighteen cases were for reactor licensees and one case was for
a materials licensee.

Section VII.B.3 provides that civil penalties or NOVs need not be issued for old design issues that are
licensee-identified and corrected and were not likely to have been identified earlier through routine
surveillance. During fiscal year 1998, 16 cases involved this exercise of discretion. All 16 cases were for
reactor licensees. :

Section VII.B.4 provides that civil penalties or NOVs need not be issued for violations identified due to
previous escalated enforcement action if the violation was licensee-identified, it has a similar root cause as
a previous escalated action, it does not substantially change the regulatory concern out of the initial action,
and it was corrected. During fiscal year 1998, two cases involved this exercise of discretion. Both cases
were for reactor licensees.

Section VIL.B.S provides that civil penalties or NOVs need not be issued for violations involving
discrimination issues ifthey are licensee-identified and corrected. During fiscal year 1998, no cases involved
this exercise of discretion.

Section VIL.B.6 provides that civil penalties or NOVs need not be issued for violations involving special
circumstances. During fiscal year 1998, 21 cases involved this exercise of discretion. Eighteen cases were
for reactor licensees and three cases were for materials licensees.

Appendix E includes a summary of the escalated cases issued during fiscal year 1998 that involved an
exercise of discretion.

5. Actions Against Individuals & Other Non-Licensed Persons

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued 31 actions against individuals and other non-licensed persons.
The following sections provide a breakdown of the actions based on whether the actions were issued to
licensed or non-licensed individuals, as well as other non-licensed persons (e.g., vendors). The section on
orders includes orders that were issued to individuals that prohibited or limited their activities in NRC-
licensed activities during the fiscal year.

A. Actions Against Licensed Individuals

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued 7NOVs to licensed individuals. Appendix F includes a short
summary description of these actions.
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B. Actions Against Non-Licensed Individuals

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued 9 orders, 10 NOVs, and 2 DFIs, to non-licensed individuals.
Appendix G includes a short summary description of each of these actions.

C. Actions Against Non-Licensed Persons Other Than Individuals

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued one NOV, one civil penalty, and one DFI to a non-licensed
person (vendor) other than an individual. Appendix H includes a short summary description of this
action.

6. Cases Involving Discrimination

During fiscal year 1998, the agency issued three enforcement actions for violations involving discrimination.
The NRC subsequently withdrew one of the actions. Appendix I includes a short description of each of the
three actions involving discrimination that were issued during the fiscal year.

7. Hearing Activities

During fiscal year 1998, four cases had some type of hearing activity, i.e., hearing request, settlement,
dismissal, discovery, hearing proceeding, appeal, etc. Appendix J includes a short summary of each of these
cases.

8. 10 CFR 2.206 Petitions

‘During fiscal year 1998, there were no cases that had some type of petition activity pending before the Office
of Enforcement during the fiscal year, i.e., petition request, NRC staff review, Director’s Decision, etc.

9. Withdrawn and Modified Enforcement Actions

During fiscal year 1998, two civil penalty enforcement actions were completely withdrawn and four civil
penalties were withdrawn. Appendix L includes a short summary description of the two withdrawn cases that
were proposed in fiscal year 1997. The other cases are described in either Appendix A or Apendix B and
include the basis for withdrawal.
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TABLE 1: ESCALATED ENFORCEMENT ITEMS &

DEMANDS FOR INFORMATION

Region | Region | Region | Region | Other' Total Total Total Total
1 11 H1 v FY98 | FY97 FY 96 | FY95

Conferences 48 24 28 21 1 122 181 143 117
Escalated
NOVs w/o 36 22 28 20 2 108 124 96 76
Civil Penalties
Proposed Civil
Penalties 35 8 21 11 1 76 112 78 56
Imposed Civil
Penalties 2 1 2 1 0 6 10 9 10
Civil Penalties
Paid 28 6 23 11 0 68 108 56 47
Orders 5 4 2 5 0 16 28 17 22
Demands for
Information 2 0 2 2 0 6 35 7 8
Total 156 65 106 71 4 402 597 405 339

! This category includes actions initiated by the Office of Enforcement (OE), the Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation (NRR), and the Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards (NMSS). During this fiscal year:

4 NRR conducted one conference and issued 2 escalated NOVs.

4 NMSS issued 1 escalated NOV with a civil penalty.
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TABLE 2: ESCALATED ENFORCEMENT ITEMS

BY TYPE OF LICENSEE, VENDOR, OR INDIVIDUAL

Escalated
Type of NOVs Civil Total | Total Total Total
Licensee (w/o penalty) | Penalties | Orders | FY98 | FY97 | FY 96 FY 95
Academic 1 3 0 4 3 5 3
Physician 4 2 1 7 9 3 2
Fuel Facility 1 4 1 6 5 3 1
Gauge User 18 6 2 26 31 23 29
Hospital 10 3 0 13 33 13 12
Irradiator 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
Radiographer 6 1 1 8 9 12 11
Pharmacy 1 0 0 1 0 1 3
Operating
Reactor 33 47 1 81 112 87 50
Research
Reactor 2 0 0 2 0 0 0
Materials
Distributer 0 2 0 2 1 2 0
Mill 0 0 0 0 1 1 0
Other 12 7 0 19 17 10 11
Well Logger 2 1 1 4 1 0 0
Vendor 1 0 0 1 1 8 5
Licensed
Individual 7 0 0 7 2 6 7
Non-Licensed
Individual 10 0 9 19 38 19 23
Total 108 76 16 200 264 191 159
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TABLE 3: CIVIL PENALTY INFORMATION

FY98 FY97 FY 96 FY 95
Number of Proposed 76 112 78 59
Civil Penalties
Number of Imposed 6 10 9 10
Civil Penalties
Number of Civil 68 108 56 47
Penalties Paid
Amount of Proposed $5,206,600 $7,422,300 $3,832,500 $2,263,950
Civil Penalties
Amount of Imposed $115,650 $285,250 $44,500 $615,250
Civil Penalties
Amount of Civil $6,493,573 $6,657,300 $3,014,000 $2,265,949
Penalties Paid

NOTE: Thistable includes information based on individual civil penalty assessments. An enforcement
action may include more than one individual civil penalty. In addition, a civil penalty may be

proposed in one fiscal year and paid or imposed in another fiscal year.
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TABLE 4: CIVIL PENALTY RANGES

Reactor Licensees
Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of
Civil Penalty Amounts Penalties Penalties Penalties Penalties
FY 98 FY 97 FY 96 FY 95
< $50,0000 0 1 0 3
$50,000 - 55,000 35 41 24 7
$55,001 - $99,999 2 2 5 3
$100,000 - 110,000 6 17 2] 9
$110,001 - $200,000 0 6 0 3
$200,001 - $300,000 1 2 0 0
> $300,001 3 1 0 0
Total 47 70 50 25
Material Licensees
Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of
Civil Penalty Amounts Penalties Penalties Penalties Penalties
FY 98 FY 97 FY 96 FY 95

0- $2,500 3 12 18 9

$2,501 - $5,000 10 17 2 12
$5,001 - $7,500 4 2 1 3
$7,501 - $10,000 4 5 4 3
$10,001 - $25,000 3 4 3 6
$27,500 2 0 0 1
$55,000 3 0 0 0
$100,000 0 1 0 0
$200,000 0 0 0 0

Total 29 41 28 34

penalty issued to a vendor in fiscal year 1997.

NOTE: Thistable includes information based on individual proposed civil penalty assessments. An enforcementaction
may include more than one individual civil penalty. In addition, this table does not include the $900,000
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TABLE 5: 2-YEAR ESCALATED ITEM HISTORY

FOR REACTOR SITES
FY 1997 - FY 1998 " FY 1998

Civil - Escalated || Civil Escalated

Penalty Civil NOVs Penalty Civil NOVs
Facility Amount Penalties | (w/o Amount Penalties | (w/o

penalty) penalty)J

Millstone $2,210,000 6 1 $2,155,000 5 1
Haddam Neck 650,000 3 2 0 0 1
LaSalle 650,000 2 0 0 0 0
Zion 590,000 6 1 1 10;000 1 0
Clinton 560,000 6 0 0 0 0
Quad Cities 523,000 5 0 I> 473,000 4 0
Indian Point 2 425,000 8 1 220,000 4 1
Oconee 330,000 2 1 0 0 1
Point Beach 325,000 4 3 ' 0 0 0
Nine Mile Point 305,000 5 0 105,000 2 0
Susquehanna 265,000 3 0 | r 55,000 1 0
Perry 260,000 3 2 l 100,000 2 1
Sequoyah 250,000 4 2 0 0 1
Calvert Cliffs 231,000 2 1 ) 55,000 1 1
Pilgrim 220,000 4 1 220,000 4 0
Beaver Valley 215,000 3 2 I 55,000 1 0
Waterford 215,000 3 2 ‘ 110,000 1 1
Three Mile Island 210,000 4 2 210,000 4 2
Hope Creek 205,000 4 3 55,000 1 2
St. Lucie 188,000 3 3 |l ss000 i 2
Salem 180,000 3 2 I % 0 0 2
Fort Calhoun 165.000 2 0 110.000 1 0
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TABLE S: 2-YEAR ESCALATED ITEM HISTORY
FOR REACTOR SITES - CONT.

FY 1997 - FY 1998 FY 1998

Civil Escalated [J| Civil Escalated

Penalty Civil NOVs Penalty Civil NOVs
Facility Amount | Penalties | (w/o Amount | Penalties | (w/o

penalty) L penalty)

Byron 155,000 3 1 l_- 55,000 1 1
Ginna 155,000 2 0 ) 0 0 0
Brunswick 150,000 2 2 0 0 0
Limerick 135,000 2 3 55,000 1 0
Codper Station 110,000 1 3 110,000 1 0
Indian Point 3 110,000 2 0 b 55,000 1 0
Prairie Island 100,000 2 1 I 50,000 1 0
WNP-2 100,000 1 3 0 0 2
Wolf Creek 100,000 1 0 0 0 0
Oyster Creek 55,000 1 4 55,000 1 4
Peach Bottom 55,000 1 2 55,000 1 0
Braidwood 55,000 1 1 i 55,000 1 1
Palisades 55,000 1 0 I 55,000 1 0
River Bend 55,000 1 1 I 55,000 1 0
Station
Robinson 55,000 1 1 55,000 1 1
Shearon Harris 55,000 1 1 | 55,000 1 0
Surry 55,000 1 1 ’ 0 0 0
Vermont Yankee 55,000 1 0 55,000 1 0
Crystal River 50,000 1 7 i 0 0 0
ANO 50,000 | 1 1 0 0 ]
Kewaunee 50,000 1 1 I 0 0 0
Davis-Besse 50,000 | 0 l 0 0 0
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TABLE 5: 2-YEAR ESCALATED ITEM HISTORY
FOR REACTOR SITES - CONT.

FY 1997 - FY 1998 FY 1998
Escalated Escalated

Civil NOVs Civil NOVs
Facility Penalty Civil - (wlo |jenalty Civil _ (w/lo

Amount Penalties | penalty) Amount | Penalties | penalty) |
Farley 50,000 1 0 ,_ 0 0 0
Fermi 50,000 1 0 0 0 0
Palo Verde 50,000 1 0 50,000 1 0
Dresden 0 0 3 0 0 1
Big Rock Point 0 0 1 0 0 0
Catawba . 0 0 1 0 0 1
Cook 0 0 1 0 0 1
McGuire 0 0 1 0 0 0
San Onofre 0 0 1 0 0 1
Seabrook 0 0 1 0 0 1
South Texas Project 0 0 1 0 0 0
Vogtle 0 0 1 0 0 0
Watts Bar 0 0 1 0 0 1
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FIGURE 1: ANALYSIS OF ESCALATED ITEMS
PROCESSED UNDER CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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154 individual enforcement items were evaluated in accordance with the civil penalty assessment process.

In 64 instances, the item was the first non-willful Severity Level Il enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections.

In 90 instances, the item was NOT the first non-willful Severity Level IIl enforcement issue that the licensee
had during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections.

Of the 90 applicable items, the licensee was given credit for actions related to identification in 28 instances
and NOT given credit in 62 instances.

Of'the total 154 items, the licensee was given credit for corrective actions in 141 instances (92% of the items)
and NOT given credit in 13 instances.

Discretion was exercised in 13 instances (11 times under Section VII.A.1 and 2 times under VII.B.6). This
represents approximately 8% of the individual enforcement issues.
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FIGURE 2: ANALYSIS OF REACTOR ITEMS
PROCESSED UNDER CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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68 individual reactor enforcement items were evaluated in accordance with the civil penalty assessment
process.

In 7 instances, the item was the first non-willful Severity Level III enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections.

In 61 instances, the item was NOT the first non-willful Severity Level 11l enforcement action that the licensee
had during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections.

Of the 61 apphcable items, the licensee was glven credlt for actions related to identification in 22 instances
and NOT given credit in 39 instances.

Of the total 68 items, the licensee was given credit for corrective actions in 63 cases (approximately 93% of
the items) and NOT given credit in 5 instances.

Discretion was exercised in 6 instances (5 times under Section VII.A.1 and 1 time under Section VII.B.6).
This represents approximately 9% of the individual reactor enforcement issues.
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FIGURE 3: ANALYSIS OF MATERIALS ITEMS
PROCESSED UNDER CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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86 individual reactor enforcement items were evaluated in accordance with the civil penalty assessment
process.

In 58 instances, the item was the first non-willful Severity Level 1II enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections.

In 28 instances, the item was NOT the first non-willful Severity Level Il enforcement action that the licensee
had during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections.

Of the 28 applicable items, the licensee was given credit for actions related to identification in 5 instances
and NOT given credit in 23 instances.

Of the total 86 items, the licensee was given credit for corrective actions in 78 cases (aﬁproximately 91% of
the items) and NOT given credit in 8 instances.

Discretion was exercised in 7 instances (6 times under Section VIL.A.1 and 1 time under Section VII.B.6).
This represents approximately 8% of the individual materials enforcement issues.
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FIGURE 4: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 60 instances, the item was the first non-willful Severity Level Il enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections and the licensee received credit for corrective actions.

6 of the items were for reactor licensees.

54 of the items were for materials licensees.
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FIGURE 5: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 3 instances, the item was the first non-willful Severity Level 11l enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections and notwithstanding the fact that credit was warranted for .
corrective actions, the NRC exercised enforcement discretion in accordance with Section VII.A.1 of the
Enforcement Policy and issued a civil penalty.

1 of the items was for a reactor licensee.

2 of these items were for materials licensees.
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FIGURE 6: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 2 instances, the item was the first non-willful Severity Level 1II enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections and the licensee did not receive credit for corrective actions.

Both of the items were for materials licensees.
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FIGURE 7: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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There were no items assessed on this path.
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FIGURE 8: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 21 instances, the item was not the first non-willful Severity Level 11l enforcement issue that the licensee
had during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, the licensee received credit for actions related to
identification, and the licensee received credit for corrective actions.

19 of the items were for reactor licensees.

2 of the items were for materials licensees.
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FIGURE 9: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 3 instances, the item was not the first non-willful Severity Level Il enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, the licensee received credit for actions related to identification,
and notwithstanding the fact that credit was warranted for corrective actions, the NRC exercised enforcement
discretion in accordance with Section VII.A.1 of the Enforcement Policy and issued a civil penalty.

2 of the items were for reactor licensees.

1 of the items was for a materials licensee.
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FIGURE 10 CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 2 instances, the item was not the first non-willful Severity Level Il enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, the licensee received credit for actions related to identification,
and the licensee did not receive credit for corrective actions.

1 of the items was for a reactor licensee.

1 of the items was for a materials licensee.
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FIGURE 11: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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YES @

BASE
CcP

BASE
CP
+100%

In 1 instance, the item was not the first non-willful Severity Level 11l enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, the licensee received credit for actions related to identification,
and notwithstanding the fact that a base civil penalty would have been warranted because the licensee did not
receive credit for corrective actions, the NRC exercised enforcement discretion in accordance with Section
VIL.A.1 of the Enforcement Policy and issued twice the base civil penalty.

The item was for a materials licensee.
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FIGURE 12: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 49 instances, the item was not the first non-willful Severity Level I1I enforcement issue that the licensee
had during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, the licensee did not receive credit for actions related to
identification, and the licensee received credit for corrective actions.

33 of the items were for reactor licensees.

16 of the items were for materials licensees.
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FIGURE 13: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 6 instances, the item was not the first non-willful Severity Level Il enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, the licensee did not receive credit for actions related to
identification, and notwithstanding the fact that credit was warranted for corrective actions, in 3 instances the
NRC exercised discretion in accordance with Section VIL.A.1 and issued more than the base civil penalty and
in 3 instances the NRC exercised discretion in accordance with Section VIL.B.6 and refrained from issuing
a civil penalty. '

2 of the items were for reactor licensees. (1 item under VII.A.1 and 1 item under VIL.B.6.)

4 of the items were for materials licensees. (2 items under VII.A.1 and 2 items under VIL.B.6.)
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FIGURE 14: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 7 instances, the item was not the first non-willful Severity Level 11l enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, the licensee did not receive credit for actions related to
identification, and the licensee did not receive credit for corrective actions.

3 of the items were for reactor licensees.

4 of the items were for materials licensees.
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FIGURE 15: CIVIL PENALTY PROCESS
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In 1 instance, the item was not the first non-willful Severity Level 11l enforcement issue that the licensee had
during the past 2 years or past 2 inspections, the licensee did not receive credit for actions related to
identification, and notwithstanding the fact that credit was not warranted for corrective actions, the NRC
exercised enforcement discretion in accordance with Section VII.A.1 and doubled the amount of the civil

penalty.

This item was for a reactor licensee.
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APPENDIX A: SUMMARY OF ESCALATED NOTICES OF
VIOLATION (WITHOUT CIVIL PENALTIES)

Allied-Signal Incorporated, Metropolis, IL EA 98-171
Supplement VI

A Notice of Violation for a Severity Level Il problem based on nine violations was issued on May 5, 1998.
This action was based on the licensee’s failure to: (1) evacuate a line on the No. 2 low boiler condenser and
close the appropriate valves; (2) shut down the Distillations Hastings Heater as required; (3) maintain a
standby generator; (4) report the loss of the standby generator; (5) prohibit the release of items contaminated
with natural uranium in levels exceeding license requirements; (6) calibrate radiation survey instruments at
the required intervals; (7) comply with the requirements for performing a chemical hazard assessment;
(8) execute the response measures for a uranium hexafluoride release; and (9) have a mechanical integrity
program in place before beginning operation of the Deconversion of Uranium Hexafluoride Pilot plant. The
civil penalty was fully mitigated because: (1) this was the first escalated issue in 2 years, and (2) credit was
warranted for corrective action.

American Electric Power Company, D.C. Cook, Units 1&2 EA 97-113
Supplement V

A Notice of Violation and for a Severity Level III problem was issued on April 21, 1998. This action was
based on the failure to provide shipping papers and emergency response instructions for a shipment of
contaminated objects. Specifically: (1) the licensee offered radioactive material consisting of two packages
labeled as surface contaminated objects to a carrier for transport and did not include with the shipment a
shipping paper describing the material, and (2) the licensee offered radioactive material for transport without
the required emergency response information. Although this was not the first escalated action in two years
the civil penalty was fully mitigated because: (1) credit was warranted for identification, and (2) credit was
warranted for corrective action.
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Baltimore Gas and Electric Company, Calvert Cliffs, Units 1 & 2 EA 98-106
Supplement IV

A Notice of Violation for a Severity Level III problem was issued on March 20, 1998. The action was based
two violations related to the licensee’s failure to establish radiological controls for work in the reactor cavity
during cleaning of the reactor flange. Specifically, (1) the licensee did not make necessary and reasonable
surveys to comply with the requirements and (2) the licensee did not post an airborne radioactivity area when
required. Although abase civil penalty in the amount of $55,000 is considered for Severity Level Ill issues,
the staff exercised discretion in accordance with Section VILB.6 of the Enforcement Policy and refrained
from proposing a civil penalty in this case. The decision to exercise discretion was made because the
violations related to the cavity event occurred approximately one month after the diving event in April 1997,
and appeared to be the result of the same fundamental performance deficiencies. (See Appendix E.)

Bittner Engineering, Inc., Escanaba, Michigan EA 97-512
Supplement VI

A Notice of Violation for a Severity Level III violation was issued on November 24, 1997. The action was
based on the failure to control licensed material in an unrestricted area. As a result of this failure, a gauge
containing 8 millicuries of cesium-137 and 40 millicuries of americium-241 was run over by construction
machinery and damaged. The civil penalty was fully mitigated because: (1) this was the first escalated issue
in 2 years, and (2) credit was warranted for corrective action.

Bowser-Morner, Inc., Dayton, Ohio EA 97-391
Supplement 1V

ANotice of Violation for a Severity Level IlI violation was issued on October 8, 1997. The action was based
on the failure of the licensee to control and maintain constant surveillance of licensed material and secure
from unauthorized removal or limit access to a Troxler moisture/density gauge containing licensed material.
The civil penalty was fully mitigated because: (1) this was the first escalated issue in 2 years, and (2) credit
was warranted for corrective action. '

BP Chemicals America, Inc., Lima, Ohio EA 97-507
Supplement VI

A Notice of Violation for a Severity Level 11l problem was issued on December 16, 1997. The action was
based on eight violations whic